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GR GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAPALLI 
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 4th (Fourth) Annual General Meeting (" AGM") of the members of GR Gundugolanu 
Devarapalli Highway Private Limited ("the Company") will be held on Saturday, 30th July 2022 at 12:30PM at 
Registered Office of the Company at GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector No. 11, Udaipur-313002, Rajasthan to transact 
the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 3l't March 2022 

together with the Report of Auditors and Board of Directors thereon. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary 
Resolution: 

2. Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company. 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), if any, consent of the members of the Company, be and is 
hereby accorded for ratification of remuneration of Rs. 5,000 (Rupees Five Thousand only) plus applicable 
taxes and reimbursement of actual out of pocket expenses, payable to M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati and Co., Cost 
Accountants, who were appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors to conduct Cost Audit of the 
Company as prescribed under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014, for the financial year 2022-
23." 

3. Appointment of Mr. Kuldeep Jain (DIN: 09307480) as Director of the Company. 
"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Kuldeep Jain (DIN: 09307480), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the 
Company by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 30th September 2021, under Section 161(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and applicable provisions of the Articles 
of Association of the Company and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is 
hereby appointed as Director of the Company." 

4. Appointment of Mrs. Suhani Jain (DIN: 08S59224) as Director of the Company. 
"RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Suhani Jain (DIN : 08559224), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the 
Company by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 6th December 2021, under Section 161(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and applicable provisions of the Articles 
of Association of the Company and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is 
hereby appointed as Director of the Company." 

Date: 06.07.2022 
Place : Udaipur 

NOTES: 

By order of the Board 

~'\~ 
Sumit Sharma 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No. AS6263 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATIEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ("THE MEETING") IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ANY OTHER 

PERSON AS HIS/ HER PROXY TO ATIEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF 

THE COMPANY. 

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting. A proxy form is appended with admission slip. 
A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding SO and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share 
capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the company carrying voting 
rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

2. Any documents and papers as referred to in this notice and as required by the Companies Act, 2013 shall be available for inspection between 
11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. on all working days at the registered office ofthe Company and same shall also be so available during the meeting. 

3. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the special business to be transacted at the Meeting is 
annexed hereto. 

4. Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the meeting are provided in the "Annexure-!" to this notice. 

REGISTERED OFFICE : GR House, Hi ran Magri, Sector-11 , Udaipur -313 002 (Rajasthan) 
Ph. :+91-294-2487370, 2483033, Email: info@grinfra.com, Website: www.grinfra.com 

CIN: U45206RJ2018PTC060749 



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

ITEM NO.2 

The Board has approved the appointment of the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 
Company, for the financial year 2022-23, at a remuneration of Rs. 50001- plus appl icable taxes and actual out-of­
pocket expenses. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors approved by the 
Board of Directors, has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is 
sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2022-23. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice for approval by the members. 

None of the Directors I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company I their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

ITEM NO.3 

Mr. Kuldeep Jain (DIN : 09307480}, was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to the prov1s1ons of the 
Companies Act, 2013, on 30th September 2021. The term of his office expires on the date of the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, he has offered himself for his appointment as Director. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval by the members. 

None of the Directors except Mr. Kuldeep Jain himself I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company I their relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution . 

The details of Director seeking appointment is provided in the "Annexure-!" to this notice. 

ITEM NO.4 

Mrs. Suhani Jain (DIN : 08559224}, was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to the prov1s1ons of the 
Companies Act, 2013, on 6th December 2021. The term of her office expires on the date of the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, she has offered herself for her appointment as Director. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution for approval by the members. 

None of the Directors except Mrs. Suhani Jain herself I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company I their relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

The details of Director seeking appointment is provided in the "Annexure-!" to this notice. 

Date: 06.07.2022 
Place: Udaipur 

Sumit Sharma 

Company Secretary 

ICSI Membership No. A56263 



Annexure-! 
Information of the Director seeking Appointment/Reappointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (Pursuant 
to Secretarial Standard 2 issued by the ICSI) as on date of the Notice of Annual General Meeting is as under: 

Name and DIN Mr. Kuldeep Jain, DIN: 09307480 Mrs. Suhani Jain, DIN: 08559224 

Date of Birth/ Age 11th August 1977, 44 years 1st January 1990, 32 years 

Chartered Accountant, Bachelor's degree 
Chartered Accountant, Bachelor' s degree 

Qualification in Commerce and Master's degree in 
in Science 

Business Admin istration (Executive) 

Kuldeep Jain is an Additional Director on Suhani Jain is an Additional Director on 

Experience and Expertise our Board. He has over 15 years of our Board . She is an associate of the 
in specific functional experience in the field of Accounts, Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
area Finance and Taxation etc. India and an associate of the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India . 

Terms and condition of 

appointment along with Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director 
details of remuneration Remuneration : Nil Remuneration : Nil 
sought 

Last drawn 

remuneration, if Nil Nil 

applicable 

Number of shares held in 
GR Gundugolanu 

Nil Nil 
Devarapalli Highway 
Private Limited 

No. of Board Meetings Five out of Five Board meetings held Three out of Three Board meetings held 

attended during the Financial Year 2021-22 during the Financial Year 2021-22 

Original Date of 
30th September 2021 6th December 2021 

Appointment 

Relationship with other 
Nil Nil 

Directors 

1) GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private 1) GR Sangli Sola pur Highway Private 

Limited Limited 
2) Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private 2) Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private 

Limited Limited 

Other Directorship held 3) GR Govindpur Rajura Highway Private 
in Indian companies Limited 

4) GR Madanapalli Pileru Highway 
Private Limited 

5) GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
6) GR Bamni Highway Private Limited 

1) Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private 1) Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private 

Limited : Limited : 

• Chairperson of CSR Committee • Member of Audit Committee 

• Member of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 

Membership/Chairman • Member of Stakeholder Relationship 
of the Committees in Committee 
other Companies in India • Member of Risk Management 

Committee 
2) GR Sangli Sola pur Highway Private 

Limited 

• Member of CSR Committee 
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GR GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAPALLI 
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

To 
The Members, 
GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private limited 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 4th (Fourth) Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2022. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The financial highlights of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2022 are as under: 
(Amount Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 3Pt March 2022 31st March 2021 

Revenue from Operations 44,218.02 50,521.69 

Other Income 234.40 325.31 

Total Income 44,452.42 50,847.00 
Less: Expenses 53,070.24 45,750.91 

Profit/(Loss) before tax (8,617.82) 5,096.09 
Less: Tax Expense (2,168.94) 1,262.68 

Profit/(Loss) after tax {6,448.88) 3,833.41 

STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 

During the year under review, the Company has reported Total Revenue of Rs. 44,452.42 Lakhs as compared to 
Rs. 50,847.00 Lakhs in financial year 2021-22. 

Loss after Tax for the year ended 3Pt Ma rch 2022 is Rs. 6448.88 Lakhs as against Profit after tax of Rs. 3,833.41 
Lakhs for the year ended 3Pt March 2021. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There was no change in the nature of Company's business during the Financial Year 2021-22. 

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

During the year under review, there is no change in the capital structure of the Company. The Authorised, Issued, 
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital ofthe Company was Rs. 49,50,00,000/- consisting of 4,95,00,000 Equity shares of 
Rs.10/- each. The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights, sweat equity shares or bonus 
shares. 

DIVIDEND 

Considering the requirement of the funds for business operations ofthe Company, your directors think it prudent 
not to recommend dividend for the financial year ended 3Pt March 2022 (previous year: Nil). 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE 

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the Reserves of the Company. 

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture Company. 

REGISTERED OFFICE : GR House, Hi ran Magri, Sector-11, Udaipur- 31 3 002 (Rajasthan) 
Ph. : + 91-294-2487370, 2483033, Email : info@grinfra.com, Website : www.grinfra.com 

CIN : U45206RJ2018PTC060749 



SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

There have been no material changes and/ or commitments affecting the financial position of your company 
which has occurred from the end of the financial year upto the date of signing of this Report. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENT 

Your company has neither made any Investment, nor any guarantee has been given. Your Company falls within 
scope of the definition "Infrastructure Company" as provided by the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the 
Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act with regards to loans, Guarantees and 
Investments. 

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Statutory Auditors 

M/s JLN US & Co ., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101543W) were appointed by the Shareholders at Annual General 
Meeting_ ofthe Company held on 27th September 2019 as the Statutory Auditors for a period offive years to hold 
office upto the conclusion of the 6th Annual General Meeting. They have audited the financial statements of the 
Company for the Financial Year under review. 

The observations of Statutory Auditors in their Report along with relevant Notes to Accounts are self-explanatory 
and therefore, do not requ ire further explanation. The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, 
reservation or adverse remark. Further, there was no incidence offraud reported by the Statutory Aud itors under 
sub-section (12) of section 143 other than those which are reportable to the Central Government. 

Internal Auditor 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Nayan Jain, Chartered 
Accountant (ICAI Membership No. 445570) was appointed as an internal auditor w.e.f. 20th February 2021, 
however he resigned from the office of Internal Auditor w.e.f. 5th March 2022. 

Secretarial Auditor 

M/s Bharat Chaudhary & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice were appointed to conduct Secretarial Audit 
of the Company for the financial year ended 31't March 2022. The Secretarial Audit Report for the said Financial 
Year is annexed herewith and forms part of this Report as Annexure I. The report does not conta in any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

Cost Records and Auditors 
Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Compan ies Act, 2013, is required by the Company and accordingly such accounts and records are made and 
maintained . 

M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati & Co., Cost Accountants have audited the Cost Statements of the Company and 
submitted the Cost Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022. The report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

Further, the Board has approved appointment of M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati & Co., Cost Accountants as Cost 
Auditors for the financial year ended 3l't March 2023. The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is requi red 
to be ratified by the members, the Board recommends the same for approval by members at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 



DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
During the Financial Year under review Mr. Anand Rathi {DIN : 02791023), Ms. Riya Parakh {DIN : 08769864) and 
Mr. Karan Agarwal {DIN: 07560879) has resigned from the Directorship of the Company w.e.f. 30th September 
2021, 29th October 2021 and pt March 2022 respectively and Mr. Kuldeep Jain {DIN: 09307480) and Mrs. Suhani 
Jain {DIN: 08559224) were appointed as an Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. 30th September 2021 and 
6th December 2021 respectively. 

Further, Mr. Pushkar Bhola resigned as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. 31st January, 2022 
and in place of him, Mr. Sneh Dharmawat was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
w.e.f. 3'd February 2022 and Compa ny has appointed Mr. Sumit Sharma as a Company Secretary ofthe Company 
w.e.f. 1st August, 2021. 

Further, Mr. Kuldeep Jain & Mrs. Suhani Jain, Additional Directors on the Board of the Company shall hold the 
office upto the date of the next Annual General Meeting. The Board recommends their appointment as Director 
on the Board of the Company for consideration of the members of the Company in ensuing AGM. 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134{5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors 
Responsibility Statement, your Directors hereby confi rm that: 
a) In preparation of Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2021-22, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed and there are no material departures; 
b) They have selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the 
end of financial year and of the Loss of the Company for the financial year; 

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) They have prepared annual accounts on a going concern basis. 
e) The Company being unlisted sub clause (e) of Section 134{3) is not appl icable. 
f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
As the Company is not required to have an Independent Director. Thus, the requirement to obtain declaration 
from Independent Director is not applicable on the Company. 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
The provisions of section 134{3){m) of the Act regarding conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption are 
not applicable to the Company. Further there was no foreign exchange Inflow or Outflow during the year under 
review. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR" ) Committee in accordance with provisions 
of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR initiatives undertaken by your Company, along with other 
details for the Financial Year 2021-22 and salient features on CSR policy forms part of Annual Report on Corporate 
Social Responsibility as Annexure -II to this Directors Report. During the year under review One Meeting of the 
Committee was held on 1'1 July 2021. 

DEPOSITS 
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit in terms of Chapter V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 



CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
During the Financial Year 2021-2022, all Related Party Transactions entered into by your Company with related 
parties were in ordina ry course of business and at arm's length basis. Further, details of material 
contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company at arm's length basis are disclosed in Form AOC-2 
as Annexure-Ill to the Director's Report. 

VIGil MECHANISM 
Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral, and legal business conduct. Accordingly, the 
Board of Directors has formulated Vigil Mechanism which provides a robust framework for dealing with genuine 
concerns & grievances. Specifically, employees can raise concerns regarding any discrimination, harassment, 
victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any instances of fraud by or against your 
Company. During Financial Year under review, no complaint was rece ived by the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
During the Financial year under review, there was no employee drawing remuneration in excess of limits 
prescribed by provision of Section 197 (12) read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Act. 

Further, disclosures perta ining to remuneration and other deta ils as required under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given below: 

Name Designation Qualification Work Age Date of Remuneration Previous 
Experience (Years) Commencemen paid in FY 2021- Employment 
(Years) t of Employment 22 

Sum it Company Company 1 29 August 01, 2021 Rs. 2.24 Lakhs B.I.S.L.D (NGO) 
Sharma Secretary Secretary, 

B.Com, LL.B. 

None of the employee of the Company holds any equity share of the Company nor is relative of any Director or 
KMP ofthe Company. 

ANNUAl EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES, AND INDIVIDUAl DIRECTORS 
A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board and the individual Directors was carried out for Financial 
Year 2021-22. led by the Board of Directors, the evaluation was carried out using individual questionnaires 
covering, amongst others, composition of Board, conduct as per Company values & beliefs, contribution towards 
development of the strategy & business plan, risk management, receipt of regular inputs and information, codes 
& policies for strengthening governance, functioning, performance & structure of Board, skill set, knowledge & 
expertise of Directors, preparation & contribution at Board meetings, leadership, etc. 

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Details of Board meetings held during financial year 2021-22 alongwith attendance of directors therein are as 
under: 

S. No. Date of Board Mr. Anand Mr. Karan Ms. Riya Mr. Kuldeep Ms. Suhani 
Meeting Rat hi* Agarwal ** Parakh* * * Jain/\ Jain/\/\ 

1. 26.05.2021 ·Yes Yes No NA NA 
2. 02.07.2021 Yes Yes No NA NA 

3. 30.09.2021 NA Yes Yes NA NA 



4. 29.10.2021 NA Yes 
5. 06.12.2021 NA Yes 
6. 31.01.2022 NA Yes 
7. 03.03.2022 NA NA 
8. 16.03.2022 NA NA 

Meetings eligible to attend 2 6 
Meetings attended 2 6 

* ceased to be Director w.e.f. 30.09.2021. 
**ceased to be Director w.e.f. 01.03.2022. 
***ceased to be Director w.e.f. 29.10.2021. 
"appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 30.09.2021. 
""appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 06.12.2021. 

NA Yes NA 
NA Yes NA 
NA Yes Yes 
NA Yes Yes 
NA Yes Yes 

3 5 3 
1 5 3 

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The provisions of Section 177 relating to constitut ion of Audit Committee are not applicable on the Company. 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
The provisions of Section 178 relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are not 
applicable on the Company. Accordingly company did not have adopted a policy on Directors' appointment 
and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of 
a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
Your Company has a strong and well embedded system of internal controls. This ensures that all assets are 
safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition and all transactions are authorised, 
recorded and reported correctly. The internal control system has been designed to ensure that financial and other 
records are reliable for preparing financial and other statements and for maintaining accountability of assets. 
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or operation 
were observed. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 
The provisions of Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
are not applicable on the Company. 

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
Your company regularly reviews the risk management system and major risks associated with business activities 
of the company. Further, the Board of Directors takes appropriate measures, reviews the major risks associated 
with the Company and takes all requisite measures to minimize them. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
Your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of Companies 
Secretaries of India i.e . SS-1 & SS-2 on meetings ofthe Board of Directors and General Meetings, respectively. 

ANNUAL RETURN 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on 31't March 2022 is 
available on the Company's website https://www.ggdhpl.com 

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs) 
During the Financial Year, the Company has issued and allotted following Non-convertible debentures ("NCO" ) on 
Private Placement basis: 



S. No. Description of NCO Face value Per NCO Issue Size Name of Trustee 
1. Senior, Rated, Listed, Secured, Rs. 10 Lakh Rs. 267 

Axis Trustee Services Limited 
Redeemable Non- Convertible Crores 
Debentures 

OTHER DISClOSURES 
1. The details of Debenture Trustee is avai lable on the Company's website i.e. 

https:/ /www.ggdhpl.com/grievance. 
2. The Company has neither made any appl ication, nor any proceedings are pending under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
3. The Company has not entered into any one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institutions, hence 

disclosure under rule (8)(S)(xii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is not applicable. 

liSTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs) 

The NCD(s) were listed on Wholesale Debt Market Segment on BSE Limited ("BSE" ) on 22"d March 2022. The 
annual listing fee for the Financial Year 2022-23 has been paid to BSE. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
The Board expresses its sincere gratitude to the National Highways Authority of India, Shareholders, Bankers, 
Central and State Government officials for their continued support. 

Date: 19.05.2022 
Place: Udaipur 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Kuldeep Jain 
Additional Director 
DIN: 09307480 

Suhani Jain 
Additional Director 
DIN: 08559224 



OS Bharat Choudhary & Associates 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Mob. No.: 9351962446 
Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com 

TO 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

(For the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2022) 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 ofthe 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

THE MEMBERS, 
GR GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAPALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED, 
(CIN: U45206RJ2018PTC060749) 
GR HOUSE, HIRAN MAGRI, SECTOR NO. 11, 
UDAIPUR- 313002, RAJASTHAN, INDIA 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by GR GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAPALLI 
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period April 01, 2021 
to March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed here under to this Report 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by GR GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAPALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the 
company") for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions (to 
the extent applicable) of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 
thereunder; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-law framed hereunder; 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial borrowings; 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Exchange Board of India, ('SEBI Act') 1992 

1 
Office Address: 158, North Ayad, Udaipur-313001, Rajasthan, India 



Bharat Choudhary & Associates 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Mob. No.: 9351962446 
Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 now known as SEBI (Share 
based Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008; read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations; 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021; and 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
1998. 

6. I have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standards with respect to 
Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

I further report that 

~ The Board of Directors of the Company has duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of 
the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

>- Adequate notice has been given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, 
Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and 
a system exists for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

~ All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings has been carried 
unanimously /with requisite majority as recorded in the minutes of the Meetings of 
the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

> During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of 
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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Bharat Choudhary & Associates 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Mob. No.: 9351962446 
Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com 

I further report that during the audit period: 
I. Mr. Anand Rathi (DIN: 02791023), Ms. Riya Parakh (DIN: 08769864) and Mr. Karan 

Agarwal (DIN: 07560879) resigned as Director of the Company with effect from 30th 
September 2021, 29th October 2021, and 1st March 2022 respectively. 

II. Mr. Kuldeep Jain (DIN: 09307480) and Mrs. Suhani Jain (DIN: 08559224) were 
appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect from 30th September 2021 
and 6th December 2021 respectively. 

III. Mr. Sumit Sharma was appointed as a Company Secretary of the Company with effect 
from 1st August 2021. 

IV. Mr. Pushkar Bhola resigned from the position of Chief Financial Officer & Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company with effect from 31st January 2022. 

V. Mr. Sneh Dharmawat was appointed as Chief Financial Officer & Chief Executive Officer 
of the Company with effect from 3rd February 2022. 

VI. Company issued 2670 senior, rated, listed, secured, redeemable, non-convertible 
debentures, each having a face value of INR 10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs 
Only) aggregating upto INR 2,67,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Sixty­
Seven Crores Only) NCDs got listed on BSE Limited on 22nd March 2022. 

Place: Udaipur (Raj.) 
Date: 19/05/2022 
UDIN:F010700D000336300 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 
"ANNEXURE-1" and forms an integral part if this report. 
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OS Bharat Choudhary & Associates 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Mob. No.: 9351962446 
Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com 

"ANNEXURE-!" 

TO 
THE MEMBERS 
GR GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAPALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED, 
GR HOUSE, HIRAN MAGRI, SECTOR NO. 11, 
UDAIPUR, RAJASTHAN-313002 

My report of given date is to be read along with this letter. 

A. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on my audit. 

B. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial 
records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed 
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

C. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
books of accounts of the Company. 

D. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc. 

E. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

F. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Udaipur (Raj.) 
Date: 19/05/2022 
UDIN:F010700D000336300 
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ANNEXURE-II 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited as 
company: a responsible corporate entity commits to undertake 

appropriate CSR measures having positive economic, 
social, and environmental impact to t ransform lives and 
to help build more capable and vibrant communities by 
integrating its business values and strengths. 
In its continuous efforts to positively impact the society 
and to target the inclusive growth of all the stakeholders, 
the Company has formulated a gu iding policy 
concentrating mainly on promoting education, 
environment sustainability, economic empowerment, 
rural development, health care and sanitation. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

s. Name of Director Designation/ Nature of Number of Number of meetings of 
No. Directorship meetings of CSR CSR Committee 

Committee held attended during the 
during the year year 

i. Mr. Anand Rathi * Chairman/Non-Executive 1 1 
Director 

ii. Mr. Karan Agarwal ** Member/Non-Executive 1 1 
Director 

iii. Mr. Kuldeep Jain*** Chairman/Non-Executive NA NA 
Director 

iv. Ms. Suhani Member/Non-Executive NA NA 
Agarwal **** Director 

* resigned w.e.f 30th September 2021. 
** resigned w.e.f. 1st March 2022. 
*** appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 30th September 2021. 
****appointed os Additional Director w.e.f. 6th December 2021. 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR https:/ /www.ggdhpl.com 

committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 

approved by the board are disclosed on the 

website of the company. 

4 . Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR Not Applicable 

projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) 

of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable 

(attach the report) . 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if 

any. 

s. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be setoff for the 

No. preceding financial years (in Rs. Lakhs} financial year, if any (in Rs. Lakhs} 

NIL 
~ 
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6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Net Loss of Rs. 617.17 Lakhs 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit ofthe company as per section 135(5): Net Loss of Rs. 

12.34 Lakhs 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the -

previous financial years. 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any. -

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b + 7c) -

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount Amount Unspent 

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under 

Financial Year Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 

(in Rs. Lakhs) 
section 135{6). 135(5). 

Amount Date of transfer Name of Fund Amount Date of transfer 

(in Rs. Lakhs) (in Rs. Lakhs) 

Not Applicable 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

{1) {2) (3) (4) (5) {6) (7) (8) {9) {10) {11) 
s. Name Item Local Location of the Proje Amount Amou Amount Mode Mode of 
No. of the from the area project ct allocate nt transfer of Implementation 

Project list of (Yes/ durat d spent red to lmple -
activities No) ion for the in the Unspent menta Through 
in project curre CSR tion- Implementing 
Schedule (in Rs. nt Account Direct Agency 
VII to the State District Lakhs) financ for the (Yes/ Nam CSR 
Act. ial project No) e Registrati 

Year as per on 
(in Section number 

Rs. 135(6) 
Lakhs) (in Rs. 

Lakhs) 

Not Applicable 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

{1) (2) (3) (4) (5) {6) (7) (8) 

s. Name of the Item Local Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -

No. Project from the area project spent for lmpleme Through implementing 

list of (Yes/ the ntation- Agency 

activities No) State District project Direct Name CSR 
in (in Rs. (Yes/No) registration 

schedule Lakhs) number. 

VII to the 

Act. -
Not Applicable Ae~~~ 
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads -

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable -
(f) Total amount spent for Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) -

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any. 

S. No. Particular Amount (in Rs. Lakhs) 

i. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (12.34) 

ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Year Nil 

iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil 

iv. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the Nil 

previous financial years, if any 

v. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil 

9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

S. No. Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount remaining 

(1) 
s. 
No 

Financial Year transferred to spent in fund specified under Schedule to be spent in 

Unspent CSR the VII as per section 135{6), if succeeding financial 

Account under reporting any. years. (in Rs. Lakhs) 

section 135 {6) Financial Name Amount Date of 

(in Rs. Lakhs) Year of the (in Rs transfer 

(in Rs. Fund Lakhs). 

Lakhs) 

Not applicable 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Project Name of Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of 

ID the Year in duration amount spent on amount the 

Project. which the allocated the project spent project-

project was for the in the at the end of Completed 

commenced project reporting reporting /Ongoing. 

(in Rs. Financial Financial 

Lakhs) Year (in Year (in Rs. 

Rs. Lakhs) Lakhs) 

Not applicable 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 

acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset- wise details) 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). Not Applicable 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. Not Applicable 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose Not Applicable 

name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired Not Applicable 

(including complete address and location ofthe capital asset). 



11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has 

failed to spend two per cent of the average 

net profit as per section 135(5). 

Not Applicable 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Date: 19.05.2022 

Place: Udaipur 

(#!' 
Kuldeep Jain 
Chairman 
DIN: 09307480 

Suhani Jain 
Additional Director 
DIN: 08559224 
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ANNEXURE -Ill 

Form No. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2} of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014} 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 
Name(s) of the related Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the Date(s) of Amount paid Date on which the special 
party and nature of contracts/arrangemen the contracts or approval by as advances resolution was passed in general 
relationship t/transactions contracts/ arrangements or the Board, if (if any) meeting as required under first 

arrangemen transactions including the any: proviso to section 188 
ts/transacti value, if any: 
ons 

Not Applicable 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 
Name(s) of the related 
party and nature of 
relationship 

Nature 
contracts/ 
arrangement/ 
transactions 

of Duration of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

the Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any: 

Date(s) of Amount 
approval by paid as 

G R lnfraprojects Limited 
{"GRIL") 
(Holding Company) 

Date: 19.05.2022 
Place: Udaipur 

Operation and 
Maintenance 
Agreement 
("O&M") 

The contract shall 
remain in force w.e.f. 
2nd November 2021 

and shall remain in 
force for one year. 

O&M Contract Date: 2nd November 2021 
Amount of Contract: Rs . 6 Crores 
Subject Matter: Operation & Maintenance of the Project 
Highway i.e. Four Laning of Gundugolanu-Devarapalli­
Kovvuru Section of NH-16 from Km . 15.320 (Existing Km. 
15.700) to Km. 85 .204 (Existing Km . 81.400} (Design 
Length = 69.884 Km .) in the state of Andhra Pradesh 
under Bharatmala Pariyojana on Hybrid Annuity Mode." 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~Q · 
Kuldeep Jain 
Additional Director 
DIN: 09307480 

the Board, if advances 
any: (if any, 

Rs. Lakhs) 

Not applicable Nil 

"' 

~ 
Suhani Jain 
Additional Director 
DIN:08559224 

in 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

JLN US & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
4/5, F1rst Floor, Vishwakarma Complex 
Near Paragon Mobile, Inside Udiapole 
Udaipur 31.3001, Rajasthan, India 
Mobile : +91-98280 58602, +91-98280 52131 
Email : maheshmenaria@gmail.com 

jlnusudaipur@gmail.com 
Web · www.jlnus.com 

TO THE MEMBERS OF GR GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAPALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of GR 
GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAPALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2022, its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by 
!CAl and specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon 
The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not 
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 



GR GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAP ALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone lmancial statements (Continued) 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 13 3 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Standalone Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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Independent Auditors' Report on standalone lmancial statements (Continued) 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone 
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in Annexure- I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply, in material 
respect, with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in Annexure II. 
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Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a 
material impact its financial position; 

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material 
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any 
provisioning 

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the 
reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN~3W 

/ .. 
CA Mah Menaria 
Partner 
M No.400828 
UDIN: 22400828AJLQVI7177 

Udaipur, May 19, 2022 
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Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

Annexure- I to the Independent Auditors Report 
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR GUNDUGOLANU 
DEVARAPALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31,2022 

i) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
fixed assets in existence with company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
immovable properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly 
the reporting requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

ii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has sub-contracted the entire construction f operation related activities 
and therefore does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements 
under clause (ii) of paragraph 3 ofthe order are not applicable. 

iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting 
requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and (c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting 
requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. 
Consequently, the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable. 

vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly 
reviewed such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed 
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 
complete. 

vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
records of the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in 
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and service 
tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities in India. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed 
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31, 
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
applicable statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. 

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of 
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during 
the year. 

ix) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information 
and explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks j Financial Institutions. 
The company does not have any borrowings from government or Debenture 
Holders. 

x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
term loans taken by the company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose for 
which they were taken. 

xi) (a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the 
management, the money raised by way of listed debt instruments and has been 
applied for the purpose for which they were obtained. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has made 
preferential allotment or private placement of non convertible debentures during 
the year under review and the requirement of section 42 and 62 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 have been complied with and the amount raised have been used for the 
purposes for which the funds were raised. 

xii) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the 
true and fair view of the Standalone Financial Statements and as per the 
information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we 
have neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company 
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the management. 

xiii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 
188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit 
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date 
for the period under audit. 



GR GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAP ALLI HIGHWAY PRN ATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone financial statements (Continued) 

xvi) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone 
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xix) As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
them. 

xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - lA of the Reserve Bank 
of India, 1934. 

xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to 
any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not 
applicable. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

FRf\\~W 

\_f/' 
CA Mahesh Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN: 22400828AJLQVI7177 

Udaipur, May 19, 2022 



GR GUNDUGOLANU DEV ARAP ALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

Annexure- II to the Independent Auditors Report 

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR GUNDUGOLANU 
DEVARAPALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31,2022 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GR 
GUNDUGOLANU DEVARAPALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 
31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (!CAl). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 



GR GUNDUGOLANU DEV ARAP ALLI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone financial statements (Continued) 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN1~ 
y_ 

CA Mahe Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN: 22400828AJLQVI7177 

Udaipur, May 19, 2022 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
CIN U45206Rj2018PTC060749 

Balance Sheet 
as a t 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Assets 

Non-current assets 

(a) Financial assets 

(1) Other fmanna l assets 

(b) Other non-current assets 

(c) Tax assets 

(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 
Total non-current assets 

Current assets 

(a) Fmancial assets 

{i) Trade receivables 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(i1i) Other financial assets 

(b) Other current assets 

Total current asse ts 

Total assets 

Equity and liabili ties 

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 

(b) Other equity 

Total equity 

Liabilit-ies 

Non-current li abilities 

(a) Fmancia l L•abilit1es 

(1) Borrowings 

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Total non-current liabilities 

Cu rrent liabilities 

(a) Financia lliabilihes 

(1} Borrowmgs 

(i1} Trade payables · total outstandmg dues of 

(a) micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(b) cred1tors other than m1cro enterprises and small enterpnses 
(111} Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current ilabtil!les 

Total curren t liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Bas1s of preparalton, measurement and significant accounting poliCies 
Notes to fmancial statements 

The notes referred above are an mtegral part of these fmannal statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For )LN US ANO COMPANY 

Olllrfl·rcd Accountants 

CA rvfahesh Mcnaria 

Partru:r 

Membershtp No: 400828 
Place: Udaipu r 
Date : 19 May 2022 

Ref Note No. 

21 

10 

11 

21 

11 

12 

13 

14 

2-3 
4-33 

Kuldeep Ja in 

Additional Din·cto1 

DIN: 09307480 
Place: Udaipur 
Date : 19 /'vlay 2022 

Sumit Sharma 

Compa11y Scortary 
JCSI Memb. No. A56263 
Place: Udaipu r 
Date : 19 May 2022 

As at 

31 March 2022 

75,429.88 

8,045.61 

1,430.92 

121.45 

85,027.86 

117.67 

10,162.64 

5,052.34 

1,821.94 

17,154.59 

1,02,1 82.45 

4,950.00 

(414.76) 

4,535.24 

91,704.67 

91,704.67 

4,362.15 

1,441.29 

0.26 

138.84 

5,942.54 

97,647.21 

1,02,182.45 

( m Lakhs 
• .<\5 at 

31 March 2021 

52,006 38 

1,325.06 

53,331.44 

164.00 

1,657.61 

22,045.72 

23,867.33 

tt,19B.n 

4,950.00 

6,034.12 

10,984.12 

47,396.19 

2,047.48 

49,443.67 

1,080.41 

14,046.69 

0.88 

1,643.00 

16,770.98 

66,214.65 

11,19S.n 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ 
Suhan i Jaj n 

Additional Director 

DIN: 08559224 
Place: Udaipur 

Date : 19 Mav 2022 

Sneh Dham1 c~wat 

CFOandC£0 

Place: Udatpur 
Date : 19 Mav 2022 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
CIN U45206RJ2018PTC060749 

Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Income 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Total income 
Expenses 

Construction costs 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance costs 

Other expenses 
Total expenses 

Profit before tax 

Tax expense: 

Current tax 
Adjustment related to income tax pertaining to earlier periods 

Deferred tax charge 
Total tax expenses 

Profit for lhe year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per share 

(Nominal val ue of share Rs.10 each) 

Basic (Rs.) 

Diluted (Rs.) 

Basis of preparation, measurement and s ignificant accounting policies 

Totes on financial statements 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For JLN US AND COMPANY 
Oznrlered Acc01mlnuts 
Firm 's Reg. No. 101543W 

CA Mahesh Menaria 

Partner 
Membership No: 400828 
Place: Udaipu r 
Date: 19 May 2022 

Ref Note No. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

21 

29 

29 

2-3 

4 - 33 

a.::~ 
Arlrlitionnl Director 

DIN: 09307480 
Place: Udaipur 
Date: 19 May 2022 

SumitSharma 
Compnuy SecretnnJ 

ICSI Memb. No. A56263 
Place: Uda ipur 
Date: 19 May 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

44,218.02 

234 .40 

44,452.42 

42,803.76 

2.24 

9,835.62 

428.62 

53,070.24 

(8,617.82) 

(2,168.94) 

(2,168.94) 

(6,448.88) 

(6,448.88) 

(13.03) 

(13.03) 

f iu Lnkhs 

For lhe year ended 

31 March 2021 

50,521.69 

325.31 

50,847.00 

43,902.22 

12.57 

1,540.12 

296.00 

45,750.91 

5,096.09 

(517.68) 

1,780.36 

1,262.68 

3,833.41 

3,833.41 

7.74 

7.74 

For and on behalf of the Board of Diiectors 

' 

~ SuhaniJain 

Additional Director 

DIN: 08559224 
Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

Sneh Dharmawat 

CFO nndCEO 

Place: Udaipur 
Date : 19 May 2022 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
CIN U45206RJ2018PTC060749 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments for : 

Interest income 
Finance costs 

Working capital adjustments : 
(Increase) in financial and non-financial assets 
Decrease in trade receivables 
(Decrease) in trade payables 
(Decrease) in provisions, financial and non-financial liabilities 

Cash (used in) operating activities 
Income tax paid (net) 
Net cash (used in) operating activities (A) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Interest received 
Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Interest paid 
Repayment of non-current borro;vings 
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 

Notes: 

1 Cash and cash equivalents comprises of (refer note 8) 

Particulars 

Balances with banks: 
-Current accounts 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in statement of cash flow 

Ref Note No. 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

(8,617.82) 

(234.40) 
9,835.62 

983.40 

(16,297.66) 
46.33 

(12,605.40) 
(1,504.78) 

(29,378.11) 
(105.86) 

(29,483.97) 

234 .40 

234.40 

(8,987.05) 
(2,127.60) 
48,869.25 

37,754.60 

8,505.03 

1,657.61 

10,162.64 

As at 

31 March 2022 

10,162.64 
10,162.64 

10,162.64 

it in Lnkhs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

5,096.09 

(325.32) 
1,540.12 
6,310.89 

(11,856.95) 
93.88 

(18,382.61) 
(16,480.42) 
(40,315.21) 

(239.58) 
(40,554.79) 

325.32 

325.32 

(758.72) 

42,214.92 

41,456.20 

1,226.73 

430.88 

1,657.61 

it in Lnkhs 

As at 

31 March 2021 

1,657.61 
1,657.61 

1,657.61 

2 The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS) - 7 
115tatement of Cash Flo\·VS 11

• 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
CIN U45206RJ2018PTC060749 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April 2020 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Balance as at 1 April 2021 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 

Changes in equity share capital d uring the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at 1 April2020 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2021 

Profit for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Total comprehens ive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2022 

Profit for the year 

Items of other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 

Notes on financial statements 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For JLN US AND COMPANY 

Chartered Accountants 

Fim1's Regn No. 101543W 

CA Mahesh Menaria 

Partner 

Membership No: 400828 

Place: Udaipur 

Date : 19 May 2022 

&l' 
Kuldeep Jain 

Additional Director 

DIN: 09307480 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

Sumit Sham1a 

Company Secretary 

lCSl Memb. No. A56263 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

2 - 3 

4 - 33 

i[ in Lnkhs 

Number of shares Amount 

4,95,00,000 4,950.00 

- -

- -

4,95,00,000 4,950.00 

4,95,00,000 4,950.00 

- -

- -
4,95,00,000 4,950.00 

i[ in Lnkhs 

Retained Earnings 
Total 

Other equity 

2,200.71 2,200.71 

3,833.41 3,833.41 

6,034.12 6,034.12 

(6,448.88) (6,448.88) 

(6,448.88) (6,448.88) 

(414.76) (414.76) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

. 
~~ 

Suhani Jain 

Additional Director 

DIN: 08559224 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

Sneh Dhamtawat 

CFOandCEO 

Place: Udaipur 

Date : 19 May 2022 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

1. Reporting entity 

GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited ('the Company') having Registered office at GR 
House, Hiran Magri, Sector 11, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313002 was incorporated in Udaipur Rajasthan, India on 
March 28, 2018 as a Private limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 (the' Act') as a subsidiary of G R 
Infra projects Limited. 

The Company is formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPY) to design, build, operate and transfer basis, 
("DBOT Annuity" or "Hybrid Armuity") the project relating to Four Laning of Gundugolanu-Devarapalli­
kovvuru section of NH-16 from km 15.320 (existing km 15.700) to km 85.204 (existing km 81.400 ) (design 
length =69.884 km) in the State of Andhra Pradesh on Hybrid annuity mode. The company has entered into 
concession agreement with the National Highway Authority of India ("NHAI") dated 26th April, 2018. 

The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on 
May 19, 2022. 

2. Basis of preparation 

a. Stateme11t of complia11ce 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies 
Act, 2013, (the' Act'), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

b. Fmzctio11al a11d prese11tatio11 curre11cy 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company's functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

c. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost using accrual basis of accounting except 
certain financial instruments measured at fair values. 

d. Use of estimates and judgments 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised prospectively. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjusbnent within the next financial year are included in the following notes : 

Recognition of Current j Deferred tax expense 
Revenue recognition under service concession arrangement 
Provision for doubtful debts 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

e. Measurement of fair values 

Some of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for 
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This 
includes a financial reporting team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value 
measurements, including Level3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer. 

The financial reporting team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. 
If third party information, such as pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the financial 
reporting team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these 
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the 
valuations should be classified. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows . 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability tl1at are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far 
as possible. If tl1e inputs used to measure tl1e fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of 
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of 
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers betvveen levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of tl1e reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following 
notes: 

Investments 
Financial instruments 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

3. Significant accounting polices 

a. Foreigu currency transaction 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company 
at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the average rate approximates 
the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional 
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured 
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the 
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost 
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange 
differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

b. Fiuaucial iustrumeuts 

Initial recognitiou aud measuremeut 

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. A financial asset and financial liability is initially measured 
at fair value except Trade receivable which is measured at transaction price in accordance with Ind AS 
115. Transaction price that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction price directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets or finan cial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right (not 
contingent on future events) to off-set the recognised amounts ei ther to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair 
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition 
or issue. 

ii C lassificatiou and subseque11t measuremeut 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified based on assessment of 
business model and contractual cashflows in which they are held . 

Fiuaucial assets 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 

amortised cost; 
FVOCI - debt investment; 
FVOCI - equity investment; or 
FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period 
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

At amortised cost 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual 
cash flows; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

At present, the Company does not have inveshnents in any debt securities classified as FVOCI. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the inveshnent's fair value in ocr (designated as 
FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by inveshnent basis. 

At fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company 
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that othenvise meets the requirements to be measured at 
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any 
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised 
in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. 

Finaucial assets: Busiuess model assessmeut 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is 
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is 
provided to management. The information considered includes: 

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in 
practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on eanung conh·actual 
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the 
fina ncial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising 
cash flows through the sale of the assets; 
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's 
management; 
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held . 
within that business model) and how those risks are managed; 
how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the 
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 
the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for 
such sales and expectations about future sales activity. 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are 
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the 
assets. 

Assessment whether contractual caslz flows are solely payments of priucipal and iuterest 
Further, management also evaluates whether the contractual cash flows are solely payment of 
principal and interest considering the contractual terms of the instrument. 

For the purposes of this assessment, ' principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 
initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit 
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other 
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the 
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the 
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash 
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 
terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; 
prepayment and extension features; and 
terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse 
features). 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early 
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or 
premium to its contractual paramow1t, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount 
that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest 
(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as 
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial 
recognition. 

Finaucial assets: Subsequeut measurement and gai11s aud losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and 
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in 
profit or loss. 

Financial assets 
amortised cost 

Equity inveshnents 
FVOCI 

at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment 
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on 
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 
recognised as income in profit or loss w1less the dividend clearly 
represents a recovery of part of tl1e cost of the invesh11ent. Other net 
gains and losses are recognised in ocr and are not reclassified to profit 
or loss . 
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Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as 
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and 
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial 
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any 
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of loan to the extent 
it is probable that some or all of the loan facility will be drawn down. The facility fee and related 
payments are accounted for as a transaction cost under Ind AS 109. The said facility fee is deferred 
and treated as a transaction cost when draw-down occurs; it is not amortised prior to the draw-down. 

iii. Derecognition 

Financial assets 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or 
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Further, the contractual terms of the 
existing financial assets are substantially modified, such modification is treated as the derecognition of 
original financial asset and the recognition of a new financial asset. Such newly recognized financial 
asset is measured at fair value on initial recognition. The difference in respective carrying amount, if 
any, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the modification of a financial asset does not 
result in its derecognition, then the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated at 
original effective interest rate an.d the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

If the Company enters into h·ansact:ions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred 
assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows 
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the 
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability w ith modified terms is recognised in 
profit or loss. 

iv. Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amonnts 
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

c. Operating cycle 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. Operating cycle is 
the time from start of the project to their realization in cash or cash equivalents. 
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d. Propertlj, plant and equipment 

i. Recognition and measurement 
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing 
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly 
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs 
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials 
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its 
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they 
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of 
profit and loss. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

iii. Derecognitio1z 
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The consequential gain or loss 
is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item 
and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

iv. Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives as prescribed under schedule II of the Act. 

e. Intangible assets 

z. Recognition and measurement 
Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such 
intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

ii. Subsequent expeuditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in 
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

iii. Derecognitiou 
The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an 
intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the intangible asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 
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iv. Amortisatio11 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of the intangible assets less their estimated residual 
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation 
and amortisation in financial statement. 

f. I llVelltories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items 
held for use in civil construction work and / or production of inventories are not written down below cost 
if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The 
cost of inventories is based on the weighted average cost method, and includes expenditure incurred in 
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to 
their present location and condition. 

In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost includes direct materials and labour 
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on 
weighted average cost method. Trading goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is 
determined on weighted average cost method basis. 

g. Impairme11t 

Impairme11t of finmzcial i11stnmzeuts 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
financial assets measured at amortised cost; 
contract assets recognised under conh·act with customers; and 
financial assets measured at FVOCI including debt inveshnents. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are 
credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data: 
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more; 
the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not 
consider otherwise; 
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; 

or 
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties . 

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except 
for bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the 
financial insh·ument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured as 
12 month expected credit losses. 

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected 
credit losses Lifetin1e expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible 
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Twelve months expected credit losses 
are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 
months). 
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In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.When determining whether the 
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly sinceinitial recognition and when estimating 
expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is 
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
infom1ation and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit 
assessment and including forward looking information. 

Measurement of expected credit losses 
Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured 
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the 
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet. 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets. 

ii Impainnent of Han-financial assets 

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together 
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

The Company's corporate assets (e.g., cenh·al office building for providing support to various CGUs) 
do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable 
amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment 
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or 
group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the 
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or 
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying 
amow1t does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 
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h. Employee benefits 

Short-tenn employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the 
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g. Under short­
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

i. Pmvisions and contingencies (other than for employee benefits) 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance 
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not 
provided for. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is 
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision 
is reversed." 

"Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses." 

Contingencies 
Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the 
amount of such obligation catmot be measured reliably. \Vhen there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, 
no provision or disclosure is made. 

j. Reveuue from contracts witlz customer 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when conh·ol of the goods or services are 
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to 
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that 
are separate performance obligations to which a portion of h·ansaction price is allocated. 

Revenue is measured based on the h·ansaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It 
excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. 

Service Concession Arrangement 
Service concession arrangements (SCA) refers to the arrangement between the grantor (a public sector 
entity) and the operator (a private sector entity) to provide service that give the public access to major 
economic and social facilities utilising private sector funds and expertise. 

With respec t to the SCA, revenue and cost are allocated between those relating to the construction 
services and those related to the operation and maintenance services, and accounted for separately. 

The Company constructs the infrastructure (road) used to provide a public service and operates and 
maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time. Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115 - Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, this arrangement is accounted for based on the nature of the 
consideration. The intangible asset is used to the extent that the Company receives a right to charge the 
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users of the public service. The financial asset is used when the Company has an unconditional right to 
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. 

Design-Build-Operate-Transfer (DBOT) contracts on hybrid annuity basis contain three streams of 
revenue- Construction revenue, Financing income and Operations and maintenance (O&M) income. The 
construction stream of DBOT revenues are accounted for in the construction phase of DBOT, O&M 
income is recognised in the operating phase of the DBOT, while finance income is recognised over a 
concession period based on the imputed interest method. 

Revenue from consb·uction of contracts is recognised by applying percentage of completion method after 
providing for foreseeable losses, if any. percentage of completion method is determined as a proportion of 
the cost incurred up to the reporting date to the total estimated cost to complete. Foreseeable losses, if any 
on the contracts is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of 
completion of the contract. While determining the amount of foreseeable loss, all elements of cost and 
related incidental income not included in contract revenue is taken into consideration. Contract is 
reflected at cost that are expected to be recoverable till such time the outcome of the contract cannot be 
ascertained reliably and at realisable value thereafter. 

Contract balances 
Contract assets 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services b·ansferred to the customer 
e.g. unbilled revenue. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the 
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset i.e. unbilled revenue is recognised 
for the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the 
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only 
the passage of time is required before payment of consideration is due. 

Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company 
has received consideration (or an amount of considera tion is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities 
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

Others 
Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

k. Leases 

At inception of a conb·act, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 
or contains, a lease if the conb·act conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to conb·ol the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of identified asset; (ii) the 
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset tlu·ough the period of 
lease and (iii) the Company has right to direct the use of the asset. 

a) As a lessee 

Lease term is a non-cancellable period togetl1er with periods covered by an option to extend tl1e lease if 
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate 
the lease if tl1e Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company uses judgement 
in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals/tennination options). 
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incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying 
asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the 
Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the 
useful life of the underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if 
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined. After the 
commencement date, lease liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the 
lease payment made. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including 
in-substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the 
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments 
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option. 

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Modifications to a 
lease agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are generally accounted for as a re­
measurement of the lease liability with a corresponding adjushnent to the ROU asset. Any gain or loss on 
modification is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss . However, the modifications that increase the 
scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets at a price commensurate with 
the stand-alone selling price are accounted for as a separate new lease. In case of lease modifications, 
discounting rates used for measurement of lease liability and ROU assets is also suitably adjusted. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of 
all the assets that have a lease term of twelve months or less with no purchase option and leases for which 
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

b) As a lessor 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases . When the terms of 
the lease h·ansfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is 
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

1. Recog11itioll of i11terest i11come or expe11se, Iusura11ce claim received 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. 

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of tl1e financial instrument to: 

the gross carrying amount of tl1e financial asset; or 
the amortised cost of the financial liability. 
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/ expected to be admitted 
and to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims. 
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n1. Iucome tax 

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except 
to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in OCI. 

Current tax 
Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of 
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after 
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax 
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise tl1e asset and settle the liability on a net basis 
or simultaneously. 

ii Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amonnts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that 
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company 
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or 
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such 
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable 
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the ma1mer in 
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 
and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but tl1ey intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a 
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

Any tax credit available is recognised as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credit can be utilized. The said asset is 
created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and loss and shown under the head of deferred tax. 

Preseutation of cunent and deferred tax: 
Current and deferred tax are recognized as income or an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except when they relate to items tl1at are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case, 
the current and deferred tax income/ expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. 
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The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company. 

n. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs are interest and other incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds . Borrowing 
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial 
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other 
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

o. Eamings per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods 
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares 
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to 
equity sha reholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

In a capitalisation or bonus issue or a share split, ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders for no 
additional consideration. The number of ordinary shares outstanding before the event is adjusted for the 
proportionate change in the number of ordinary shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the 
beginning of the earliest period presented 

p. Operating segments 

Opera ting segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources 
cmd assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company. 

q. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash, drafts and cheques in 
hand, bank balances, unencumbered demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three 
months or less and other short term highly liquid investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on 
demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a component of 
cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement. 

"Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits / (Loss) before tax is adjusted for 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments and item of expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows . The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated ." 
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r. Staudards notified but 110t yet effective 
Following are the amendments to existing standards (as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
on 23rd March, 2022) which are effective for annual periods beginning after 1st April 2022. The Company 
intends to adopt these standards or amendments from the effective date, as applicable and relevant. These 
amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements. This 
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further 
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Company when it will adopt the 
respective standards. 

Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - For items produced during testing/ trail phase, 
clarification added that revenue generated out of the same shall not be recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss and considered as part of cost of PPE. 
Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets - Provisions on what constitutes 
cost of fulfilling contracts (to determine whether the contract is onerous or not) is included. 
Ind AS 41 Agriculture - This aligns the fair value measurement in Ind AS 41 with the requirements 
of Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and 
enables preparers to determine whether to use pre-tax or post-tax cash flows and discount rates for 
the most appropriate fair value measurement. 
Ind AS 101 - First time Adoption of Ind AS - Measurement of Foreign Currency Translation 
Difference in case of subsidiary/ associate/ JV' s date of transition to Ind AS is subsequent to that of 
Parent. 
Ind AS 103 - Business Combination - Reference to revised Conceptual Framework is included. For 
contingent liabilities / levies, clarification is added on how to apply the principles for recognition of 
contingent liabilities from Ind AS 37. Recognition of contingent assets is not allowed. 
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it 
applies the '10 per cent' test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. 



Notes: (continued) 

3. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in terms of lnd AS 7: 

Non-current borrowings 

Current borrov.-ings 

Non-current borrov.-ings 

Current borrov.-ings 

4 Figures in brackets represent outflows. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Notes on financial statements 

Total 

Total 

As at 

1 April 2021 

47,396.19 

1,080.41 

48,476.60 

As at 

1 April2020 

4,665.65 

4,665.65 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For JLN US AND COMPANY 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Reg. No . 101543W 

CA Mahesh Menaria 

Partner 

Membership No: 400828 

Place: Udaipur 
Date : 19 May 2022 

Net cash flow 

38,603.17 

38,603.17 

Net cash flow 

41,456.20 

41,456.20 

2-3 
4-33 

Kuldeep Jain 

Additional Director 

DIN: 09307480 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

Sum it Sham 1a 

Company Secro!lary 

ICSl Memb. No. A56263 

Place: Udaipur 
Date : 19 May 2022 

~in Lnkhs 

Others 
As at 

31 March 2022 

5,705.31 91,704.67 

3,281.74 4,362.15 

8,987.05 96,066.82 

Others 
As at 

31 March 2021 

1,274.34 47,396.19 

1,080.41 1,080.41 

2,354.75 48,476.60 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ 
Suhani Jain 

Additional Director 

DIN: 08559224 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

Sneh Dharmawat 

CFOandC£0 

Place: Udaipur 
Date : 19 May 2022 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

4 Other financial assets (Unsecured considered good) 

Particulars 

Non-current 

Right to receive annuity from concession grantor 
Deposits w ith remaining maturity of more than 12 months 

Current 
Right to receive annuity from concession grantor 
Securi ty deposits 
Others 

5 Other assets (Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Particulars 

Non-current 

Contract assets receivables 

Balance with government authorities 
GST input receivable 

Current 
Contract assets receivables 
Mobilisation advances given toG R Infra projects Limited (Parent Company) 
Advance to suppliers lor goods and services 

Prepaid expenses 
Balance with government authorities 

GST input receivable 
GST IDS receivable 

6 Tax assets 

Particulars 

Non-current 
Advance tax (net of provision lor tax) 

Ref Note No. 

27 

27 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

'ti11 Lnkils 
As at As at 

31 March 202231 March 2021 

74,679.88 
750.00 

75,429.88 

5,021.63 
3.85 

26.86 
5,052.34 

? i11 Lnkl1s 
Asat Asat 

31 March 202231 March 2021 

8,045.61 
8,045.61 

0.80 
65.07 

939.56 
816.51 

1,821.94 
9,867.55 

44,963.56 

7,042.82 
52,006.38 

20,569.90 
175.39 

40.09 

1,260.34 
22,045.72 
74,052.10 

? i11 Lnkils 

As at As al 
31 March 2022l1 March 2021 

1,430.92 1,325.06 
1,430.92 1,325.06 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financia l statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

7 Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Current 
Trade receivables 
Less: expected credit loss/ a llowance for doubtful debts 

Break-up of Security detai ls 

Secu red, considered good 
Unsecured, considered good 
Trade Receivables w hich have significant increase in cred it risk 

Trade Receivables- credit impaired 

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 

Balance as at begning of the year 

Add; Allowance for the year 

Less: Adjustment during the year 
Balance as at end of the year 

< i11 Lnkils 

Ref Note No. As at As at 

31 March 2022!1 March 2021 

117.67 164.00 

117.67 164.00 

117.67 164.00 

117.67 164.00 

Below is Trade receivables ageing schedule based on oustanding frc:..:.om:.:.:...d:cu:ce::...::d.:..at'-'e'-o'-f-'p'-a'-'y'--m-'-en::-t __ -::-_:--:-::--:---:--:---:----:--:-:--::-:----:---------
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

31 March 2022 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 
Undispu ted Trade Receivables - w hich have significant increase in 
cred it risk 
Und isputed Trade receivable - cred it in1paired 
Dispu ted Trade receivables- considered good 
Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired 
Total 

· 31 March 2021 
Undisputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 
credit risk 
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired 
Disputed Trade receivables- considered good 
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired 
Total 

Noles:-

a) Trade Receivables are non interest bearing. 

Current but 
not due Less than 6 

month 

5215 

5215 

82.91 

82.91 

6 months- More than 3 Tot at 
1 year 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
years 

60.48 5.04 117.67 

60.48 5.04 117.67 

60.48 20.61 164.00 

60.48 20.61 164.00 

b) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due 
from firms or private companies respectively in which any d irector is a partner, a director or a member. 

Retention money relating to construction contracts are included in above trade receivables as they dre recoverable within the operating cycle of the Company. 

Particulars Ref Note No. 

Retention money 

8 Cash and cash equivalents 

Part-iculars Ref Note No. 

Balance with banks 

in current accounts 
Deposits w ith original maturity of less than three months* 

*Deposits lien w ith banks/ lenders against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) and Major Maintenance Reserve Account (MMRA). 

< iu Lnkils 

As at As at 

31 March 2022!1 March 2021 

50.59 103.52 
50.59 103.52 

< iu Lnkils 

As at As at 

31 March 2022!1 March 2021 

1,904.19 
8,258.45 

10,162.64 

5,220.00 

1,657.61 

1,657.61 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Equity Share capital 

Particulars 

Authorised 

4,95,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 
4,95,00,000 eqUi ty shares of Rs. 10 each 

Reconciliation of equity share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 

Particulars 

At the commencement of the year 

Add: Issued durmg the year 
At the end of the year 

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company 

Part-iculars 

EqUity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held by 
G R lnfraprojects LtmJted (Parent Company ) 

Part iculars of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 
As at Mach 31, 2022 

31 March 2022 

Numbers Amount 

4,95,00,000 4,950.00 

4,95,00,000 4,950.00 

31 March 2022 

Numbers 

4,95,00,000 

% of total 
share in class 

100.00 

Promoter nam£' No. of 
Shares 

%of total % Change No. of 
Shares shares during the year 

G R lnfraprojec ts Lm1 . :f 4,95,00,000 100.00 4,95,00,000 

Terms & Rights attached to equity shares: 

As at 

31 March 2022 

4,950.00 

4,950.00 

4,950.00 

4,950.00 

(in Lnkhs 

As at 

31 March 2021 

4,950.00 

4,950.00 

4,950.00 

4,950.00 

(in Lnkhs 

31 March 2021 

Numbers Amount 

4,95,00,000 4,950.00 

4,95,00,000 4,950.00 

31 March 2021 

Numbers 

4,95,00,000 

% of total share in 
class 

100.00 

As at Mach 31, 2021 
%of tota l 

shares 

100.00 

% Change during 
the year 

The Company has a smgle class of equ1ty shares. Accordmgly, all equ1ty shares rank equally w1th regard to div1 dends and share m the Company's res1dual assets The equ1ty 
shares are enti tl ed to rece1ve d 1vidend as declared from time to time. The vo ting rights of an eqUEty shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are m proportion to its 
share of the pa1d-up equ1ty cap1tal of the Company. Votmg nghts cannot be exercised in res pect of shares on whJCh any call or other sums present ly payable have not been 
paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. 

On windmg up of the Company, the holders of equ1ty shares w1 ll be entitled to rece1ve the residual assets of the Company, remammg after d1stnbutJon of all preferential 
amounts in proportion to the number of equ1ty shares held. 

10 Other equity 

~i11 Lzkhs 
Particulars Retained Earnings Tota1 

Balance as at 1 April 2020 2,200.71 2,200.71 

Prof1t for the year 3,833.41 3,833.41 
Total Comprehensnre Income for the year 

Ba1ance as at 31 March 2021 6,034.12 6,034.12 

Profit for the year (6.448.88) (6,448.88) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 (414.76) (414.76) 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

11 Non current borrowings 

Particulars 

Secured Loans - From Banks 
Axis Bank 

Bank of Maharashtra 

Aseem Infastructure Finance Limited 

State Bank of India 

HDFC Bank 

PNB Bank 

Debentures - Secured 
Senior, rated, listed, fully secured, redeemable, non convertible Debentures 

Unsecured : 
Loan from G R Infra projects Limited (Parent company) 

Total 

Non-Current portion of long term borrowings 
Current maturities of long term borrowings 

Notes: 

Debt Covenants: 

Ref Note No. As at 

31 March 2022 

15,000.00 

14,956.41 

19,932.51 

49,888.92 

26,652.25 

26,652.25 

19,525.65 
19,525.65 

96,066.82 

91 ,704.67 
4,362.15 

96,066.82 

?iu Laklts 

As at 

31 March 2021 

24,244.78 

7,400.42 

7,375.00 

39,020.20 

9,456.40 
9,456.40 

48,476.60 

47,396.19 
1,080.41 

48,476.60 

Non-current borrowings contains debt covenents relating to debt-equity ratio, debt coverage ratio, interest coverage ratio and total debts to ne t worth ratio. 
The Company has satisfied all the debts covenants prescribed in the terms of respective loan/ debenture agreement as at reporting date. 

2 Und rawn borrowing facility 

Disclosure of undrawn borrow ing faciliti es (excluding non-fund based facilities) towards future projects to be executed by the Company is Rs N il. ( 31 
March 2021 Rs 38,800 lakhs ). 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the fmancial statements (contmued) 
fu r the yt·nr t•ndt·d 3 1 Murr h 21122 

11.1 Bo rrow ings fco nlinu crl) 

Note: N,\1\11" o f so..><: u n ty, mh •n""l r, lh•, " '1'-')' lll• ' nl h •rm<~ .u1d nllwr m f1>1'nM I1un fp r ]l(•rmwm,:..; 

3 I M.uch2022 

Sr No l',nlicul.ull Tot.d No n·C 11rrc nl 

(AI Scl'ured l o.m~ frn m h.mkll 

1•1 Axt!< lkmk 

(ul R1 nk of M.1h.tr.1shtr.l 

(m) Lo.m PNB B.mk 19,'132.51 IS,801.71 

( tv) Lv.mH D FC I3.ulk 1-1,'156.<11 1-1,1 21.011 

rv) l..o.M n 5 BI I3. rnk 15,1JUII.UII 1·1,"12ll.93 

(v t) St•n•n r, r,r(.,,], hsh!d, fully !-< '!.7111\·tl, 26,652.25 25,135.33 

rc. t. ... m~.~hh •, llllll•"on v••rtrhl ... Dd•i•nt u r• .., 

(II) Sccu rc d ]o;tn.'l from o thers 

(1) A'it.'t.' llllnf..L.;;tnh:tu rc Fm.mn• Lrm tl•·d 

___ 7_6,541 .17 72,179.02 

ICI Unsecured lo.rt\11 from o ther 

Lt:...n hu m G R lnfr. •pn•J•, ·ts L111111< 'd 19,525.65 19,525.65 

( P.m •nt Cump.u1y) 

1'1.525.65 19,525.65 

'J6,066.S2 91,711•1.&7 

Curr ~: nt 

1,130.SO 

S35.<11 

H7'J.U7 

1,516.1;7 

4,362.15 

<1,3&2.15 

31 M.m~h 2021 

Tu1.1l Nn ll·Currc tl l 

24,2-1-1.7, 2J,5n.· JH 

7,-10()42 7, 19-Uil 

7,175.1MJ 7, J72.51J 

39,020.20 37,939.79 

9, .J5(, .1(1 IJ. -156·1U 

'J, <1 56.t!O 9,456.4 0 

•1S,476.60 •17,396.19 

Curre nt 

fin.:m 

Sc!Curity Rcp•IYIIICI\l h!fll\ 11 

Ftn. l dMq;t• .. l•y w.ty of hypulht•, ·,,tum of .1!1 tlw fl l.:tid ,1so;d s / Muv,1hln ,\~sl'ls I'"'J"ds R''I'·'YnWnl 27 IMif-yl'a rly msl.LI Inwnl .;ommennl pos t o.:urn pl••hu n 

h111•k l lo •ht'l, nt"'r.l1il1)', r.wh flow, "~''1\".lh i L' , n'VL'nu c wh. llL'\'o!r 1'1.\ lu n: , u m;,,IJ,•d o·,,pil.ll, o f rm.>r,\lnn um r"~:nod t>o: •s t COD r.ul)',ln)\ (rum 2.711 ':!.. In 4 ~','~ nf lo.m 

Pnlt!~ls h.mk ol!..l.nu nl k A~•~nnwnt of nll lhP Co mp;m y's n 1;ht, ln!-Uf,lr"lo.:t• pn lk1t.,; ,md t,1k o.• n , .1 lnn~ Wllh monthly mlt•n•st r.11t• H. I S ~. 

mt o.•n""! \ undt•r :111 lhP •'1\""-'lliPn\ n• l.th•d to tho.• l'"'tt.'<:bl .md )', tl.lr.:mk'l.• o r 1 "-'florm.mc~ 

b11nd pnw1do.•d by :my p.~rty fu r !I ll}' o;nntr.u:t n•l,!lo •d In tlw l' l"t'J'";I!. m f.wour nf 1111' 

hurmwcr. ph·J ~·.c of 51% lihnn.• of o.•q u1\V s han.• 

205.h l Firs t ,·h.H)\l"'! hy 1\',\y o f hy pnlht 't\1\inn of .111 the ft ~ctl ,1s-.c ts l t-.·lov,!hlc ol!o"SC IS p nljt.'o.:ls Rep.1y me n t 27 h,l lf-y •~Oirly Jnslal lrntml o :t>mmcn.~ post (·om plc!Hln 

boo .. •k dt'i•t s, o r ··r.JIIt\j\ O:olsh flow. 1\'<'\:IV<ll•l l·. f\"Vl'IH \IJ w iMil'\'l'f 11<11 111\ ' . u nco~ lll'd t'ol ]'ll.tl , u f nwr.l tonulll pt!rlt1cl pu s \ COD ran~lllj \ from 2.70"' tu -1.3 % u f lt.o. ll\ 

Pn>jt 't"ts h.mk .1n:nunt ,l,r. Asl> lt~nm•·n t o f .111 the Comp.m y's ri1:ht. tns \lr.Jno.;e pulictl'!l .u1d t.1 kc n , ,Jionl: with mon thly mlt.·n.~ t r.J\i· ~ 15 '.'. 

mh·n•-.t undt•r nil tlw "f,R't 'lllt!lll n •],,!t•d to tlw I''"Jt'Cis .u\d !: •~<~ r.ulh~· or J'l· rfnrnM !l l"l ~ 

ht•rtd pn•vldL•d h}' a ny p;-,rly fur ;-, ny o1o n tr.1d n •lnh•d to tlu: t'l"l'l''• ' ls 111 f;IVI' ll t u f tlu.• 
bo..•rrull't•t, pl,·dr ~o· of S J 'X. sh.m· uf t"UIIll\' 1'i l1<1n· 
f u-..;1 · · h"rl~' "' b y 1\'•IY ,,( hyputhL't:.rtrn n ,, f .111 tho• h~ed .IS'it.•ts / Mnv.1I•IL• ol'i'll'l<i t'~"~'J" " \S Ro•p.oy mt•nlm 27 Jt,,j f .. yt.•, Jtl}' mst,lll llh 'lll f••r ~·'< IS t lrl)~ J,>,ul n.• frno~ nt.'t•J 

I"IIM. •k d1•ht s, upt•r.thnl: <.Ish Onw, 1\ '\.,J I\',l i> IP, n•V!'Illll' whiltt•v•• r n.rt u n•, unc.rtlt•d 1:.1p1till, fur the lo.m n•p.l)'llli' l11 r.l llj~lll)~ fmm 2.9?.% to -1 ·12 't uf lo. rn t,1kt•n, 

Pn> t >~ ' \ <i h.mk ,u·o·nunt k t"h 'i t);nnll'nl u f .11! tilL• Cmnpol ll}''s rt];ht , 11\ 'i llr. rnn• j'>•ht"lt"'' ,mJ ..r lo ll ]\ wrth month!}' inh•l"f'<' l r.11L• fn>m 5 Hrl ~~. 1'·•' · 

111h'I\' S1 undr•r ,JIJ tJw o l]~ l\'o'llll'nt n •l,!h •d to t]w !'l"l!Jt't 'IS .1nJ ]',ll•lr,ll\\o't' 11 r pt·rfnrnMr11"tl 

l>t.•nd pnwlt.k•d b}' •'"}' p.1rty fl•r .my ,·on\r.tt."t 1\.'],J!t•d to tho.• I'"'J•·•·ts 111 f,w,>ur nf ti ll' 

ht~rmwo•r. r •l t•dr~._. ,,f 5 1 X. s l~o~n • uf l'llllll\' s ha n · 

Fr~ l dlolrj',t"'! l•y w.ty ,,( lwputlll'!."••hun ., r 01 l1 tlw fr xt •d · •~: \:; I MllVolhlt• o\1>~ ·1:. p n•Jt't 'IS Rq•••)lmvnt m 27 h.rl f· y• ··•rly rns t.rllnwnt ft.•rt''< tS h ll)', "-•·•n n•fin,lnn·d 

bt~ok d e hts, ope t.llrll]', t".lsh tlnw , n.,_·,:w .lhle, n•Vt'lllltJ wlMtcvPt n.H IIflJ, un.-. riJ,•d o:.lptl .tl. fo•r II'WJ lo.m n :p.l}' lli•JIII r.lll)',lll)', fn >m 21J?. % to -1 .·12'"'. of lo. rn \,1kt•n, 

l'n>Jt'!.""IS l>,mk ,,n 1!11 1\l .~ A.;;··•J',IIIllv tll u f n ll tho• C PiliJ'•IIl}''s fl ]1,ht , lll ~ \lf,llll't' pPiit-w'i omd . o lun~ wr th m"nlhly urh•n-s \ r.1h• fn •m 5 !«1"., I'· •' 
mh• l"f'<' t unde r .111 tlw ·'J~R.'t.' tnl! lll n• l,!h•d to the pn•JI.:d s .md )~ ! t.lr.lllh '!.! 11r J'l•rfnrm.m,·c 

'"'nd pruvrdt•d h y .my J'•lfl}' f,r olll}' runtr.u·t n •lo!lo•d hJ lh·· l'"'l"'t~ Ill r ....... llf u f thl' 

lll >rrut t" o•r, pk•dj~C o f 5 1 X s h.lrc uf t.'ljlll l}' s h.1n • 

ru~ t d lo~rg·~ hy 1\'ol}' of h ypntlu·t.'•I IUI!\ "' .1 11 tlw fl ~t :d •• ~ ... !IS I MtJVo lt">l .! i\..'o~ds pn•Jt 'CI!!o R •. ,-..,y nu•nt m 27 hollf-y· ··lrly ms lolllllwnl fort '.'(\~1 111 )', khlll n ·firMncn l 

ho11•k d~· bt 'i, U ]'l' t.l llll] ~ c.1sh tlow, n~·•: • v;~ l>h• , n 'VI'I\111' whall'Vl' f na tun • , lllll'.llll•d l\ lJ'IIa l, fu r llwl<•an n-payment r.lll J:IIIJ~ fn•m 2.9:\'X. tu -1 ·121. uf k•all laki•n , 

l'r.>Jt'ol!. l> .mk olt"t"nunt ,l,r_ AsM);11111t 'll l IJ f olll tlw C< llllj"'-lll}'' ~ f l):h t, 11\Sll fo\I'IC"t' j"l\.>l !Ch'S nnd ,\lUll)~ 1\' llh 1111)11\hly mh•n"'l t r.l lt • fn• m 5 '15','., p.j\. 
mtcn>.;; \ u n,l~> r all tlw .ll:n'< •mt•nt n•l.1t1•d ICI !hi.' pn>JI't"L.;; o.~nd r,u.lr.orr t•~· nr l'e rtnrnMnn• 

hl>lld j'I\•VIdl-..1 h y o\1\)' J'MI}' {,or o\11}' n JI\ Ir.lCI r\: ],\lc d to \] It' J'"-'Jl'CtS Ill fiiVUto r I)( tho · 

h•• rrt llt'o!r, plt•dJ:t! of 5 1 'X, .-h.tn • of ''<]1 11 1}' s ll.ln• 

Frn. t d~o~rr.• "' l>y way o f hypulht 't":.JIInn of ,r ll tlw fl:owd ,>S'-1.'11> I Mov. 1l>l•• ,,s.,.•ls pn•J• 'cts Rt'j'• l)l nt t• nt rn 27 h,,j f.yc. rrly Uls\,lllnwnl ftltt•xrs llll)', Jo,u\ n·fmimCI•d 

b t.>t.<k d ••l>t.;;, opt.•r.JIIIIJ: o' ,r'lh tlnw, 1\'o "ciV.II•h• , f l 'V l'IH IC' wha !t•v••r n,t\u n•, tlllt'<r llt·d t".tpil.tl , fnr tl w lt"m n•p.rynwn t r.m!',lll)', fn •m 2.1J?.% l o-1 ·12\~. uf 1••·111 !Jkl'n , 

f'r.1JI"f 1S b.mk •ICCo unl ,l,r_ Al-" l!;n nwnt nf nil tl w C ulliJ'illiY's fl);ht, tnsu r. u"W~I' l"llicu.,; .md a lnng 11" 1\h m nnth ly ul lt·tt .,; ll"ollt· fn•n1 5 HO''~ I'·•' 
mlt·r•"'! t umli•r .111 tlw .lf,"-"-' tnl'nl n•],,lt•d to till' pn•t•••·ls .md t:u.Jr,mh•c u r j''l.•rfnrm.Hl<"C 

bu nd pn.•v t d~·d l•y .my p.uty fl> r .my nm tro~c t n· l, lh-d tu tlw p n.>jt'\ IS rn f.lvu llr uf tlu· 

l"ll•rn•tt't•r, pl,·d~t·of 5 1 'X. sh.m· of t't]llil)' s h.m • 
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12 Trade payabJes 

Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of 
Nhcro en terprises and small en terprises (refer note below) 
Creditors other than micro enterprises and smdll enterprises 

Ageing for trade payabJes from due date 

As at 31 March 2022 

Undispu ted creditors other than miCro enterprises and smal l enterprises 
D1sputed credi tors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Undisputed Micro en terprises and sma ll enterprises 
D1sputed Micro en terprises and small enterprises 
Total 

As at 31 March 2021 
Undisputed creditors other than m1cro enterprises and small enterprises 
Disputed creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Und tsputed Micro enterprises and s ma!J enterprises 
Disputed Micro enterprises and sma ll enterprises 
Total 

Notes:-
a) Trade payable are non interest bearing and generally have credit period of 30-90 days. 
b) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 22 
c) Total outstandmg dues of Micro and small enterprises 

Trade payables 
Payable to related parttes 

d) Detatls of d ues to nucro and small en terprises as d efined under the MSMED Act, 2006 

Less than 1 year 

1,441.29 

1,441.29 

Less than 1 year 

14,046.69 

14,046.69 

De taUs of Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 

Particulars 

The prinCipal a mount and the mterest due thereon (to be shown separately) 
rPma ining unpa id to anv supplier at the end of each accounting year; 
The amou nt of interest paid by the buyer m terms of section 16 of the Mtcro, Small 
and Mechum Enterprises Development Ac t, 2006 (27 of 2006), along '1-vith the amount 
of the payment made to the supp lier beyond the appointed day during each 
accountmg yea r; 

The dmount of mterest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(whtch has been paid but beyond the appomted day during the year) but without 
addmg the in terest specified under the MIC ro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006; 
The amount o f interest accrued and remaming unpaid at the end of each accounting 
year; and 
The amount of further mterest remainmg due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, unttl such date when the mterest dues above are actually paid to the small 
enterpnse, for the purpose of disallowance of a ded uctible expenditure under section 
23 of the t-..•licro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

tin Lakhs 

Ref Note No. As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

1,441.29 14,046.69 
1,441.29 14,046.69 

1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years Total 

1,441.29 

1,441.29 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

14,046.69 

14,046.69 

As at As at 
31 Ma.rch 2022 31 i'vfa.rch 2021 

~ill Laklts tin Lnklts 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Thedtsclosu re m respect of the amount payable to enterpnses which have provided goods and serviCes to theCvmpany and whtch qualify under thedefmttton of micro 
and smclll enterpnses, as dehned under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been made m the stand alone fmanc1al statements as a t the 
reportmg date based on the mformalion received and available with the Company. On the basts of such mformatton, no mterest is payable to any m1cro, small and 
mediUm enterprises. 

e) Retention money payable relatmg to construction contracts are mcluded m above trade pay abies as they are payable w1thm the operdtmg cycle of the Company. 

Particulars 

Retentton money 

13 Other fina ncial liabilities 

Particulars 

Employee related liabilities 

14 Other current liabilities 

Particulars 

Customer advances 
Statutory liability 

TDS payable 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

~ i11 Lakhs 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

20.61 20.61 
20.61 20.61 

~in Lakhs 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

0.26 0.88 
0.26 0.88 

( m LakllS 

As at As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

1,489.54 

138.84 153.46 
138.84 1,643.00 
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15 Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from contracts w ith customers (Utility) 

Revenue from contracts with customers (COS) 
Revenue from contracts with customers (Claim) 

Finance income 

16 Oth er income 

Particulars 

Interest income 
- on Income tax refund 
- on Mobilisation advances to Parent Company 
-Reversal of provision of inte rest on mobilisation advances from N HAI 
- on Fixed deposi t 

17 Civil construction costs 

Particulars 

Civil sub-contract charges 
Civil sub-mntract charges (Utility) 
Civil sub-contrac t charges (COS) 
Civil sub-contrac t charges (O&M) 
Civil sub-contract charges (Claim) 
Labour cess 

18 Employee benefits expenses 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 

19 Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interes t on Borrowing 
-banks 
-olhers 

Interest on mobilisation advances 
Finance cost on service concession arrangements 
Other borrowing cost 

20 Other expenses 

Particulars 

Insurance expenses 
Payment to auditors (refer note (i) below) 
Legal and professional cha rges 
tvlisce llaneous expenses 
Independent engineers fees 
Rent 
Annual custody fees 
Electricity expenses 
Other recovery 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

( i11 Lak/1s 

For th e year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

38,645.93 39,799.72 

833.18 1,104.55 

4,718.18 3,306.50 

20.73 
6,310.92 

44,218.02 50,521.69 

(ill Lnkl1s 

For the year ended For th e year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

7286 0.98 
289 324.34 

96.08 
62.58 

234.40 325.31 

( i11 Laklls 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

36,704.99 39,191.69 
803.74 1,095.37 

4,655.39 3,172.04 
386.01 
20.52 

233.11 443.12 
42,803.76 43,902.22 

( i11 Laklls 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

2.24 1257 
2.24 1257 

<ill Lnklls 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

4,468.06 743.21 
1,128.24 531.13 

265.78 
3,255.92 

983.40 
9,835.62 1,540.12 

( i11 Lnkl1s 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

128.79 60.53 
0.60 1.10 

57.27 18.41 
3.76 0.74 

104.65 103.17 
0.83 0.54 
0.79 0.75 

73.10 
58.83 110.76 

428.62 296.00 
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(i) Payment to auditors 

Particulars 

Payment to auditors (exclusive of GS1) 
-as auditor 

-Statutory audit 
-Other services 

21 Tax expense 

A. Income tax (income) I expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars 

Current tax 

Current tax on profit for the year 

Deferred tax 

Attributnble to-

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (refer note D) 
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Particulars 
Profit before tax 

Tax using the Company's statutory tax rate 

Effect of: 

Impact of tax ordinance 

Reversal of provision of taxes for earlier years 

Tax expense 

C. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 

As on 31 March 2022 

Movement in temporary differences 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial 
instrument at an10rtised cost 

Service Concession Income 
Unused Tax Losses 
Net deferred tax (assets) I liabilities 

As on 31 March 2021 

Movement in temporary differences 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial 
instrument at amortised cost 

Service Concession Income 
Unused Tax Losses 
Net deferred tax (assets) I liabilities 

Ref Note No. 

Deferred tax 
(assets) 

(262.58) 
(262.58) 

Deferred tax 
(assets) 

(700.54) 
(700.54) 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

0.60 

0.60 

31 March 2022 

(2,168.94) 
(2,168.94) 

31 March 2022 
(8,617.82) 

(2,168.94) 

(2,168.94) 

<in Lnklls 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

0.30 
0.80 
1.10 

i[ in Lnklls 

31 March 2021 

(517.68) 

1,780.36 
1,262.68 

i[ iu Lnklls 

31 March 2021 
5,096.09 

1,282.58 

497.78 

(517.68) 

1,262.68 

? iu Laklls 

Deferred tax Net deferred !ax 
liabilities (assets) I liabilities 

32.95 32.95 

108.18 108.18 
(262.58) 

141.13 (121.45) 

<in Lnklls 

Deferred tax Net deferred tax 
liabilities (assets) I liabilities 

246.70 246.70 

2,501.32 2,501.32 
(700.54) 

2,748.02 2,047.48 

Deferred tax asset has been recognised as it is reasonably certain that the deferred tax asset shall be realised against future taxable incomes. 
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D. Recognised deferred tax (assets) and liabilities 

As on 31 March 2022 

E. 

Movement in temporary differences 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial 
instrument at amortised cost 

Service concession income 
Unused tax losses 

As on 31 March 2021 

Movement in temporary differences 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial 
instrument at amortised cost 

Sen,ice concession income 
Unused tax losses 
MAT credit enti tlement 

Unused tax losses 

Balance as at Recognised in 
1 April2021 profit or loss during 

the year 

246.70 

2,501 .32 
(700.54) 

2,047.48 

(213.75) 

(2,393.14) 
437.96 

(2,168.94) 

Balance as at Recognised in 
1 April 2020 profit or loss during 

the year 

143.42 

943.17 
(296.40) 
(523.07) 
267.12 

103.28 

1,558.15 
(404.14) 
523.07 

1,780.36 

? i11 Lnkl!s 
Balance as a t 31 

March 2022 

32.95 

108.18 
(262.58) 
(121.45) 

? i11 Lnkl!s 
Balance as at 

31 March 2021 

246.70 

2,501.32 
(700.54) 

2,047.48 

? i11 Lnkl!s 

Particulars Balance as at 31 March 2022 Balance as at 31 March 2021 

AY 2019-20 
AY2020-21 
AY 2021-22 
Total 

Unused tax losses recognised 

Can)' Forward 
Losses 

1,043.28 
1,043.28 

1,043.28 

Expiry assessment Carry FoiWard Expiry assessment 
year Losses year 

2027-28 486.02 2027-28 
2028-29 
2029-30 

653.96 
1,643.44 

2,783.42 

2,783.42 

2028-29 
2029-30 
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22 Related party disclosure 

A. Related parties with whom the company had transactions during the year 

(a) Parent company: 

G R Infra projects Limited 

(b) Key Management Personnel ("KMP"): 

Mr. Karan Agarwal - Director (resigned w.e.f. 01 .03.2022) 

Mr. Kuldeep Jain-Additional Director (appointed w.e.f. 30.09.2021) 

Mr. Anand Ratlti- Director (resigned w.e.f. 30.09.2021) 

Mr. BaJa ji- Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f 31.03.2021) 

!VJS. Riya Parakh - Director (resigned on 29.10.2021) 

Mr. Pushkar Bhola -Chief Financial Officer & Chief Executive Officer (resigJled w.e.f. 31.01.2022) 

Mr. Sneh Dharmawat-01ief Financial Officer & Chief Executive Officer (appointed w .e.L 03.02.2022) 

Mr. Suntit Sharma-Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f. 01.08.2021 ) 

Ms. Suhruti Jain-Additional Director (appointed w.e.f. 06.12.2021) 

B. Related party transactions with Parent Company and its closing balances 

TI1e terms a.I1d conditions of tl1e tra.I1Sactions witl1 key ma.I1agement personnel and tl1eir related parties were no more favourable t11ru1 those 
available, or tl1ose which ntight reasonably be expected to be available, in respect of similar trru1Sactions witl1 non-key mru1agement personnel 
related entities on an arm's lengtl1 basis. 

TI1e aggrega te value of tl1e Compru1y's trru15actions and outstanding balances relating to key mru1agement personnel and enti ties over whicl1 they 
have control or significru1t influence is as follows: 

Nature of transaction 

(a) Loru1 received 

(i) G R lnfraprojects Lintited 
(b) Loru1 repaid 

(i) G R Infra projects Lintited 
(c) Construction costs 

(i) G R Infra projects Lintited 
(d) Mobilisation advances adjusted 

(i) G R Infra projects Lintited 
(e) Interest received on mobilisation advances 

(i) G R Infra projects Lintited 
(f) Interest paid on 1111Secured loan 

(i) G R Infra projects Lintited 
(g) Remw1eration 

(i) Mr. Bala ji 
(ii) Mr. Suntit Shanna 

Particulars 

(a) Loru1 payable 

(i) G R Infra projects Li.ntited 
(b) Trade payable 

(i) G R Infraprojects Lintited 
(c) Retention payable 

(i) G R Infra projects Lintited 
(d) Mobilisation advances receivable 

(i) G R Infra projects Lintited 
(e) Rem1111eration payable 

(i) Mr. BaJa ji 
(ii) Mr. Suntit Sham1a 

(in Lakhs 

Transaction value 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

9,583.67 4,544.47 

527.24 

42,570.65 43,459.10 

175.39 8,982.38 

2.89 324.34 

1,128.24 531.13 

12.57 
2.24 

Balance outstanding receivable/(payable) 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

19,525.65 9,456.40 

1,345.81 13,878.04 

20.61 20.61 

175.39 

0.88 
0.26 
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23 Fair Value Measurements 

A. Accounting classification an d fair values 

As at 31 Maxch 2022 ? i11 Lnkhs 

Fair Valu e 

Levell - Level 2 - Level3- Total 

Paxticulaxs FVTPL* FVOO .. Amortised cost Total Quoted price Significant Significant 
in active obsen' able un observable 
markets inputs inputs 

Trade receivables - 117.67 117.67 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 10,162.64 10,162.64 - -
Other bank balance - -
Other financ ial assets - - 80,482.?? 80,482.?? - -
Total Financial assets - - 90,762.53 90,762.53 - -

Borrmvings - 96,066.82 96,066.82 

Trade payable - 1,441.29 1,441.29 - - -

Other financial liabilities - 0.26 0.26 - -
Total Financial liabilities - 97,508.37 97,508.37 - - - -

As at 31 Maxch 2021 ? i11 Lakhs 

Paxticulaxs 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equ ivalents 
Other bank balance 
Other financial assets 
Total Financial assets 

Borrowings 
Trade payable 
Other financial liabilities 
Total Financial liabilities 

FVTPL* 

*FVfPL= Fair value through profit and Joss 

FVOCI .. 

**FVOCI =Fai r value through other com prehensive income 

Amortised cost 

164.00 
1,657.61 

1,821.61 

48,476.60 
14,046.69 

0.88 
62,524.17 

Total 

164.00 
1,657.61 

1,821.61 

48,476.60 
14,046.69 

0.88 
62,524.17 

Levell ­
Q uoted price 

in active 
markets 

Le\1el2-
Significant 
obsen,able 

inputs 

Fair Value 
Level3-

Significant 
unobsen,able 

inputs 

Total 

The fair values of the financia l assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 category above has been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models 
based on a discounted cash flow ana lys is, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit ri sk of counterparties. 

There have been no transfers between Ievell and level 2 during the years. 

Valuation technique used to determ ine fair value: 
• Inputs included in Levell of Fair Value Hierarchy are based on prices quoted in stock exchange and / or NAV declared by the Funds. 
• Inputs included in Level 2 of Fa ir Value Hierarchy have been valued based on inputs from banks and other recognised institutions such as FHvtMDA/ FEDAI. 
• Inputs included in Level 3 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued using acceptable valuation techniques such as Net Asset Value and/ or Discounted Cash Flow Method. 
Note: All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as above, based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. 

24 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies 

The Company's finan cia l liabilit-ies comprise mainly of borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company's financial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash equivalents and 
other receivables. 

Credit risk is the risk that d counterpctrty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to 
credit risk primarily trade receivclbles and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously 
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties. 

A. Maxket risk 

~·larket risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interes t rates and equi ty prices- will affect the company's income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments. Ma rket risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments. 
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B. Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract. leading to a financia l loss. The company is exposed to 
credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The company's exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously 
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties. 

The carry ing amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure: 

O ther f inancial assets 

This comprises mainly of construction asset receivable - Right for Annuity receivable from NHAI. deposits with banks . Credit risk arisi ng from these construction assets is 
limited and there is no collateral held against these because the counterparties are NHAI. 

C. Currency ris k 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees ("Rs."). The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk. 

D. Interest ra te risk 

Interest ra te risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument w ill fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to 
interest rate risk resu lting from flu ctuations in interest rates. Company 1S borrowing includes unsecured loan taken loan from banks & the Parent Company . Summary of financial 
asse ts and financial liabilities has been provided below: 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

The interest ra te profile of the Company 1s interest- bea ring financial instrument as reported to management is as follows: 

Fixed-rate instruments 

Financial assets 
Financial liabilities 

Variable-rate instruments 

Financia l asse ts 
Financial liabilities 

Interest ra te sensith1ity 

31 March 2022 

9,008.45 

80,482.22 
96,066.82 

i! i11 Lnkhs 

31 March 2021 

48,476.60 

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interes t ra tes. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of floating rate 
financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis points interest rate across all y ield curves. 
This calcul ation a lso assumes that the change occurs a t the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The yea r end balances 
are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period . 

Sensi tiv ity analysis 

In terest ra te 

-increase by 100 basis points 

- decrease by 100 basis points 

E. Liquid ity risk 

i! i11L.nkhs 

Impact on profit bofore tax 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

(155.85) 

155.85 

(484.77) 

484.77 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated wi th its financial liabili ties that are settled by del ivering cash or another 
financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have s ufficient liquidity to meet its liabili ties when they a re due, under 
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company invest in liquid mutual funds to meet 
the immediate obligations. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The fo llowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted. 
(in Lakhs 

as at 31 March 2022 Carrying Contractual cash flows 
amount Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5 

year years 

Borrowings 96,066.82 96,066.82 4,362.15 21 ,284 .15 70,420.52 

Trade pay abies 1,441.29 1,441.29 1,441.29 
Other curren t fin ancial liabilit ies 0.26 0.26 0.26 
Total 97,508.37 97,508.37 5,803.70 21,284.15 70,420.52 

as at31 March 2021 Carrying Contractual cash flows 
amount Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5 

year years 

Borrowings 48,476.60 48,476.60 1,080.41 10,040.00 37,356.19 

Trade payables 14,046.69 14,046.69 14,046.69 
Other current financial liabilities 0.88 0.88 0.88 
Total 62,524.17 62,524.17 15,127.98 10,040.00 37,356.19 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

25 Capital management 

For the purpose of the Company's capi tal management, capital includes paid-up equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. 
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to 
sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, to equi ty share holders. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjus tments to it in the light of cha nges in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. Breaches 
in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lend ers to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest 
bearing loans and borrowing during the year. To maintai n or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is net debt divid ed by total equity. The Company's policy is to keep the net debt 
to equ ity ratio below 3. The Com pany includes within net debt, interes t bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and short-term deposits. 

26 

1 

2 

Total borrowings 
Less: cash and cash equ ivalents 
Adjusted net debt 

Equity share ca pital 

Other eq ui ty 

Total equity 

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. 

Ratio 
Current Ratio (in times) 
(Current assets/ Current liabilities) 

Debt Equity Ratio (in tin1es) 
(Total Debt J Total Equity) 
(Total Debt= Debt comprises of current borrowings( including current maturities of long term borrowings), non cu rrent borrowings and 
interest accrued on borrowings and excludes the unsecured borrowing taken and ou tstanding from the holding company (G R 
Infraprojects Limited). 
Total Equity (net worth)= Equity share capital+Other eq uity+ unsecu red borrowing taken from the holding company) 

3 Debt Sen, ice Coverage Ratio (in times) 
((Earning before interest and tax and depreciation)l (principal repayment of non-current borrow ings (excluding repayment of unsecured 
borrowing taken from the hold ing company) made du ring the period and finance costs)) 

Return on equity ratio(%) 
(Profi t for the period or year J Net worth) 
(Net \North: Equity share capital+Other equity+ unsecured borrowing taken and outstanding from the holding company) 

Inventory turnover ratio ( in times) 
(Revenue from operation ( an nu alised) I Average Inventory) 

Trade receivables hunov er ratio (in times) 
(Revenue from operation ( annualised) I Average account receivable) 
(Average account receivable= Average trade receivables+ average unbilled revenue) 

7 Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) 
(Purchases made du ring the year ( annualised) / Average account payable) 

8 Net capital hunmrer ratio (in times) 
(Revenue from operation ( dnnua lised) / working capital) 
(Working capital= Current assets - Cu rrent liabilities) 

9 Net profit ratio(%) 
(Profit/ (loss) for the period/ Tota l Income) 

10 Return on capital employed (%) 

(Profit before intres t and taxes for the period or year J Capi tal employed) 
(Capital employed = Total assets- Current liabilities) 

11 Return on Investment(%) 
(Profit for the year/ Total assets) 

31 March 2022 

96,066.82 

10,162.64 
85,904.18 

4,950.00 

(414 .76) 

4,535.24 

18.94 

31 March 2022 

2.89 

3.18 

0.10 

-26.80% 

NA 

0.61 

5.50 

3.94 

-14.51 % 

1.27% 

-6.31 % 

( iu Lnkhs 

31 March 2021 

48,476.60 

1,657.61 
46,818.99 

4,950.00 

6,034.12 

10,984.12 

4.26 

31 March 2021 

1.42 

1.91 

0.92 

18.75 % 

NA 

0.90 

1.83 

7.12 

7.54 % 

10.98% 

4.97% 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

27 Disclosrue pursuant to appendix-£ of Ind AS 115 for Service Concession Arrangements 

Name of entity Description of the arrangement Significant terms of the arrangement 

GR The Company is formed as a special purpose Period of concession: 2018-2036 
Gundugolanu vehicle (SPV) to design, build, operate and 

Remuneration : 40% during construction period and balance 
Devarapalli transfer basis, ("DBOT Annuity"or " Hybrid 

60% in half yearly annuity in 15 years as per concession 
Highway Annuity ") the project relating to Four Laning of 

agreement 
Priva te Limited Gundugolanu-Devarapalli-kovvuru section of 

Investment grant from concession grantor: No 
NH-16 from km 15.320 (existing km 15.700) to 
km 85.204 (existing km 81.400) (design length Infrastructure return at the end of concession period: Yes 

=69.884 km) in the State of Andhra Pradesh, 
which shall be partly financed by the Investment and renewal obligations: Nil 

Concessionaire who sha ll recover its investment 
and costs through payment to be made by the 

Re-pricing dates: No 

authority~ in accordance with the terms and Basis upon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is determined : 

condition set in concession agreement entered NA 

into. Premium payable to grantor: Nil 

PCOD Date: 10-07-2021 

(iu Lnklzs 

Annuity receivable from 
concession grantor 

(including Contract assets 
receivables) 

31 March 2022 

79,701.51 

31 March 2021 

65,533.46 



GR Gundugolanu Devarapalli Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

28 Disclosrues prus uant to Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts lvith Customers 

A. Disaggregated revenue information 

i) Type of service rendered 
Sale of services 

Total 

ii) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography 

India 
Outside India 

Total 

iii) Timing of Revenue recognition 

Revenue from Goods and Services transferred to customers at a point in time 

Revenue from Goods and Services transferred to customers over time 

Total 

B. Contract balances: 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

44,218.02 

44,218.02 

44,218.02 

44,218.02 

44,218.02 

44,218.02 

( i11 Laklls 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 

50,521.69 

50,521.69 

50,521 .69 

50,521.69 

50,521.69 

50,521.69 

The following table provides information about receiva bles, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts '"'ith..:cc:.u.:.s;_:to-;n
7
le:c.r;_:s._-;--;------;-;--(-;i:'-11-;La=ki;_:IS_ 

Year ended Year ended 

Trade receivables 
Opening ba lance 

Closing ba lance 

The increase J decrease in trade receivables is mainly due to increase f decrease in sa les. 

Annuity receivable from concession grantor (including Contract assets receivables) 
Opening balance 

Closing balance 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

164.00 

117.67 

65,533.46 

79,701.51 

257.88 

164.00 

46,327.09 

65,533.46 

Contrac t assets/ financia l assets (annuity recievable from concessio n grantor) are recogn ised as per Append ix D to Ind AS 115, when the Company has an 
unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. 

Contract liabilities 
Opening balance 

C losing ba lance 

Contract liabilities include advance from customers and transaction price alloca ted to unexpired service obliga tions. 

C. The amount of relrenue recognized from 

- Performance obligations satisfied in previous yea rs 

- Amounts included in contTact liabi li ties at the begin ning of the yea r 

D. Performance obligation 

i) Sa les of Services: 

1,489.54 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

1,489.54 

17,578.65 

1,489.54 

(ill Laklls 

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

16,089.10 

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the assets is under control of customer and they simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by 
the Company. The Company received progressive payment toward provision of services. 

E. Reconciliation of the amount for revenue recognised in the Sta tement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price: 

Revenue as per contracted price 
Adjustments 

Claims 

Va riable consideration - performance bo nus 
Re\1enue from contract with customers 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

44,218.02 

44,218.02 

( i11 Lnkhs 

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

50,521.69 

50,521.69 



29 Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Face value per equity share (in Rs.) 
(a) Profit for the yea r attributable to equi ty shareholders 
(b) Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 

(c) Equity shares issued during the yea r 
(d) Number of equity shares at the end of the year 
(e) Weighted average number of eq uity shares for calculating basic EPS 
(f) Weighted average number of equity shares for ca lculating diluted EPS 

Earnings Per Share (in Rs.): 

Note: 

Basic earning per share (a/e) 
Diluted earning per share (a / f) 

<iu U!kils 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

10.00 10.00 
(6,448.88) 3,833.41 

4,95,00,000 4,95,00,000 

4,95,00,000 4,95,00,000 
4,95,00,000 4,95,00,000 
4,95,00,QOO 4,95,00,000 

(13.03) 7.74 
(13.03) 7.74 

\"'eighted average number of equity shares is the number of eq uity sha res outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of equity shares issued 
during the year multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the num ber of days for which the specific shares are outstanding as a 
proportion of total number of days during the yea r. 

30 Segment reporting 

Basis for segmentation 

ln accordance with the req uirements of lnd AS 108- "Segment Reporting", the Company is primarily engaged in a business of civil construction and has no o ther 
primary reportable segments. The Managing Director of the Company allocate the resources and assess the performance of the Company, thus he is the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The COD!vl monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment, hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed. 

Information about geographical areas 
As the Company operates in India only, hence no sepa rate geographical segment is d isclosed. 

Information about major customers 
Revenue of Rs 44218.02 lakhs are derived from single customer (NHAI) which amounts to 10% or more of the Company's revenue. 

31 Contingent liabilities and commitments 

A Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 
(a) Oaims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 
(i) Indirect tax matters 
(ii) Direct tax matters 
(iii) Civi l matters 

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees: 
Guara ntees given to third parties 

Total 

B Commitments 

(a) Other Commitments 

< i11 U!klls 

As a t As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

3,629.58 32,531.91 

32 The Company has assessed the possible impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its business operations, liquidity position and recoverability of its asse t balances as at 
Ma rch 31, 2022 based on the internal and externa l sources of informatio n upto the date of approval of these audited standalone fin ancial sta tement. Also, the 
management does no t see a ny risks in the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabili ties as and when they fall due. The Company has 
adeq uate funds and/or unutiJ.ized fund-based credit facilit ies available, to take care of any urgent requ irement of fund s. Accordingly, the Company believes that 
there is no material impact of Covid 19 on these audited st~ndalone financial sta tement. The final impact of COVill-1 9 may be different from that estimated as at the 
da te of approval of these audited standalone financial sta tement and hence management will contin ue to monitor any material changes to the future economic 
conditions. 

33 Previous year figures have been regrou ped 1 reclassified wherever consider necessary. 
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